
  

 
 

Meeting Notice 
 
 
 
TO:  Agency and Corporation Members 
 
FROM: Kenneth F. Rose, Chief Executive Officer 
 
DATE: September 18, 2023 
 
RE: MCIDA and MCCRC Governance and Regular Meetings 
 
 
 Governance and regular meetings of the Montgomery County Industrial 
Development Agency and Montgomery County Capital Resource Corporation are 
scheduled for Thursday, September 21, 2023 at 3:00 p.m. at the Montgomery County 
Business Development Center, 113 Park Drive, Fultonville, NY.   
 
 Please call Vincenzo at 853-8334 between 8:30 a.m. and 4:00 p.m.  if you have 
any question  
 
cc: A. Joseph Scott, III, Esq.   The Recorder 

Montgomery Co. Legislature 
DPW 
      

 
 
 
 
 

Department of Economic Development and Planning, 
Industrial Development Agency & Capital Resource Corporation 

113 Park Drive, P.O. Box 277, Fultonville, NY 12072  p: 518.853.8334  www.montgomerycountyworks.com 
 

 



Montgomery County Industrial Development Agency  
Meeting 

Agenda September 21, 2023 
 

 
 
 

I.  Call to Order      
        

II.  Minutes 
A. Regular Meeting-July 13, 2023 

 
III.  Communications    

 
IV.  Public Comments 
 
V.  Chair’s Report 
    
VI. Director’s Report 

 
VII. Financial Report 

A. Financial Report-Action Item 
B. Revolving Loan Fund-Semi Annual Report 
 

VIII. Marketing Report 
 

IX. Unfinished Business 
 

X. New Business 
A. 2024 Proposed Budget-Action Item 
B. Golf Course Apartments, LLC. -Action Item 
C. Mohawk Solar Discussion-Action Item 
D. Beech Nut Discussion- Action Item 

 
XI.  Adjournment 

 



Montgomery County Industrial Development Agency Meeting 
July 13, 2023 

Meeting Minutes 
 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT:   STAFF MEMBERS PRESENT: 
Matthew Beck, Co-Chair    Kenneth F. Rose, Chief Executive Officer 
Carol Shineman, Co-Chair    Sheila Snell, Chief Financial Officer   
Mark Kowalczyk, Member     Vincenzo Nicosia, Director of Program Development 
Cheryl Reese, Treasurer     Andrew Santillo, Staff Assistant 
Brent Phetteplace, Member   Stephanie Battisti, Economic Development Specialist  
        Christopher Canada, Esq., Agency Counsel   
       

  
ABSENT:     OTHERS PRESENT: 
Amanda Auricchio, Esq., Member     
Laurie Weingart, Secretary 
 

                                               
I. Call to Order 
 

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Beck at 3:03 p.m. 
 

 
II. Minutes 
 

A motion was made by Cheryl Reese, seconded by Matthew Beck, to approve the meeting minutes 
from the Governance Committee Meeting minutes of June 15, 2023. 
 
A motion was made by Carol Shineman, seconded by Matthew Beck, to approve the meeting minutes 
from the IDA regular meeting of June 15, 2023. 
 

 
III. Communications 

 
There was no communications.    

 
 

IV. Public Comments 
 
There was no public comment.  

 
 
V. Chair’s Report 

 
There was no Chair’s Report. 
 

 
VI. Director’s Report 

 
There was no Director’s Report.  

  1 
MCIDA Minutes 7.13.23 



 
 

VII. Financial Report 
 

A. Financial Report 
 
Ms. Sheila Snell stated that the financial reports are included in the Agency Board member’s packets.  
 
A motion was made by Mark Kowalczyk, seconded by Cheryl Reese, to accept the transactions. 

 
B. Revolving Loan Fund Report 
 
Ms. Snell stated that the Revolving Loan Fund is included in the Agency Board members’ packets.  
 

 
VIII. Marketing Report 

 
Mr. Vincenzo Nicosia stated that we are continuing with ongoing marketing initiatives, which 
continue to be successful. 
 
The department’s new website will be going up soon, as things are being transferred over from the 
current site. The reimbursement from National Grid came in to defer a portion of those costs.  
 
With regards to tourism, the county has partnered with the Amsterdam Police Benevolent Association 
for its Cops & Joggers race. This year, in addition to the 5K race, there will be a 10K race, which will 
take place all prior to the city’s Italia Fest, on Sept. 9.  
 
There will also be a kayak event in late August, which staff is working on planning and preparing.  
 
In addition, a press event was held recently for a “Pastport To History” program that will highlight 
the county’s historical sites. Each student who visits a set amount of sites over the summer and marks 
their “pastport” will be entered to win a prize.   
 
A new tourism website is also being produced and should be finalized soon.  
  

 
IX. Unfinished Business 

 
There was no unfinished business.  

 
 

X. New Business  
 

A. Golf Course Apartments, LLC. 
 
Mr. Ken Rose stats the at the Agency’s last meeting Mr. Dan Roth provided info on this project and 
a full IDA Application has been received. This resolution will schedule the Public Hearing in the 
Town of Amsterdam, probably in August, and then another resolution would follow to consider 
approval of this project.   
 
 

  2 
MCIDA Minutes 7.13.23 



The following resolution was offered by Cheryl Reese, seconded by Mark Kowalczyk, to wit: 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER OF 
MONTGOMERY COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AGENCY TO HOLD A PUBLIC HEARING 
REGARDING A PROPOSED PROJECT TO BE UNDERTAKEN FOR THE BENEFIT 
OF GOLF COURSE APARTMENTS, LLC.  

 
The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, which 
resulted as follows: 

 
Matthew Beck VOTING YES 
Carol Shineman VOTING YES 
Mark Kowalczyk VOTING YES 
Amanda J. Auricchio, Esq. VOTING ABSENT 
Laurie Weingart VOTING ABSENT 
Cheryl Reese 
Brent Phetteplace 

VOTING 
VOTING 

YES 
ABSTAIN 

 
The foregoing Resolution No. 23-11 was thereupon declared duly adopted 
  

 
Ms. Sheila Snell has worked with Agency Counsel to provide a list of assets owned by the Agency 
that will be sold to the county. Counsel has prepared this resolution to dispose of these assets from 
the old office, an agreement transferring them from the Agency to the county, and since it’s a type 
two action, it can be sold for less than fair market value.  
 

The following resolution was offered by Carol Shineman, seconded by Brent Phetteplace, to wit: 
 

SALE OF CERTAIN ASSETS TO MONTGOMERY COUNTY, NEW YORK 
APPROVING RESOLUTION  

 
The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, which 
resulted as follows: 

 
Matthew Beck VOTING ABSTAIN 
Carol Shineman VOTING YES 
Mark Kowalczyk VOTING YES 
Amanda J. Auricchio, Esq. VOTING ABSENT 
Laurie Weingart VOTING ABSENT 
Cheryl Reese 
Brent Phetteplace 

VOTING 
VOTING 

YES 
YES 

 
The foregoing Resolution No. 23-12 was thereupon declared duly adopted 
 

 
B. Policy and Procedure Manual  

  
Agency Counsel states that since the Uniform Tax Exempt Policy to reflect the new state law that 
relate to after a public hearing resolution is adopted, the taxing jurisdiction must be informed and 
also inform the jurisdiction two years in advance if a Payment In Lieu Of Taxes (PILOT) is expiring. 

  3 
MCIDA Minutes 7.13.23 



Since this is not changing anything any business terms, a new Public Hearing is not needed. This 
resolution finds that it is a type two action and it approves the amendments to the UTEP.   
 

The following resolution was offered by Mark Kowalczyk, seconded by Cheryl Reese, to wit: 
 

UNIFORM TAX EXEMPTION POLICY AMENDMENTS APPROVING 
RESOLUTION  
 
The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, which 
resulted as follows: 

 
Matthew Beck VOTING YES 
Carol Shineman VOTING YES 
Mark Kowalczyk VOTING YES 
Amanda J. Auricchio, Esq. VOTING ABSENT 
Laurie Weingart VOTING ABSENT 
Cheryl Reese 
Brent Phetteplace 

VOTING 
VOTING 

YES 
YES 

 
  The foregoing Resolution No. 23-13 was thereupon declared duly adopted 
 

 
A motion was made by Carol Shineman, seconded by Cheryl Reese, to enter into executive session to 
discuss company financials at 3:19 p.m. All members present were in favor. 

 
A motion was made by Cheryl Reese, seconded by Mark Kowalczyk, to adjourn executive session at 3:54 
p.m. All members present were in favor. No action was taken in Executive Session. 
 
 
IX. Adjournment  
 

A motion was made by Carol Shineman, seconded by Mark Kowalczyk, to adjourn the meeting 
at 3:55 p.m. All members present were in favor.  

 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
_________________________ 
Andrew Santillo 
Economic Development Staff Assistant 
Attachments: Resolution No. 23-11, 23-12, 23-13 

  4 
MCIDA Minutes 7.13.23 











SALE OF CERTAIN ASSETS TO MONTGOMERY COUNTY, NEW YORK 
APPROVING RESOLUTION 

 
A regular meeting of Montgomery County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) was 

convened in public session at the offices of the Agency located at 113 Park Drive, Fultonville, New York 
on July 13, 2023 at 3:03 o’clock p.m., local time. 
 

The meeting was called to order by the (Vice) Chairperson of the Agency and, upon roll being 
called, the following members of the Agency were: 
 
PRESENT: 
 

Matthew Beck Chairperson 
Carol Shineman Vice-Chairperson 
Cheryl Reese Treasurer 
Mark Kowalczyk Member 
Brent Phetteplace Member 

 
ABSENT: 
 

Amanda Auricchio, Esq Member 
Laurie Weingart Secretary 

 
AGENCY STAFF PRESENT INCLUDED THE FOLLOWING: 
 

Kenneth F. Rose Chief Executive Officer 
Sheila Snell Chief Financial Officer 
Andrew Santillo Staff Assistant 
Vincenzo Nicosia 
Stephanie Battisti 

Director of Program Development 
Ec. Development Specialist 

Christopher C. Canada, Esq. Agency Counsel 
 

The following resolution was offered by Carol Shineman, seconded by Brent Phetteplace, to wit: 
 

Resolution No. 23-12 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING THE SALE OF CERTAIN ASSETS OF 
MONTGOMERY COUNTY INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY TO 
MONTGOMERY COUNTY, NEW YORK.  

 
WHEREAS, Montgomery County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is authorized 

and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York, constituting Title 1 of 
Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended 
(the “Enabling Act”) and Chapter 666 of the 1970 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 
895-d of said General Municipal Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively 
referred to as the “Act”) to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, 
reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of manufacturing, warehousing, research, 
commercial and industrial facilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing 
economically sound commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and 
economic welfare of the people of the State of New York (the “State”), to improve their prosperity and 
standard of living, and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and 

 
012178.00039 Business 23990867v1 



 
WHEREAS, the Agency currently owns certain assets (the “Assets”) as described in Exhibit A 

hereto which are no longer utilized by the Agency in its daily operations; and  
 
WHEREAS, in furtherance of the purpose, mission and governing statutes of the Agency, the 

Agency desires to sell the Assets to Montgomery County, New York (the “County”) for the consideration 
of One Dollar ($1.00) to be owned and used by the County (the “Proposed Sale”); and  

 
WHEREAS, since the Assets will be sold to a political subdivision of the State, the Proposed Sale 

is permitted to be made on a negotiated basis pursuant to Section 3(f)(iii)(D) of the Property Disposition 
Policy of the Agency (the “Policy”) and in accordance with Section 2897(6)(c)(v) of the Public Authorities 
Law, as amended (the “Public Authorities Law”); and  

 
WHEREAS, since the Assets will be sold to a government entity and the ownership and use of the 

Assets will remain with the County, the Proposed Sale is permitted to be made for less than the fair market 
value of the Assets pursuant to Section 3(g)(A) of the Policy and in accordance with Section 2897(7)(a)(i) 
of the Public Authorities Law; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Agency now wishes to authorize the Proposed Sale; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The Agency hereby finds and determines that: 
 
 (A) The sale of the Assets by the Agency to the County constitutes the purchase or sale 
of furnishings, equipment or supplies and is therefore a “Type II action” under Article 8 of the 
Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 43-B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as 
amended (the “SEQR Act”), and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of 
Environment Conservation of the State, being 6 NYCRR Part 617, as amended (the “Regulations”) 
(the SEQR Act and the Regulations being collectively referred to as “SEQRA”) and, accordingly, 
no further action by the Agency under SEQRA is required with respect thereto. 

 
(B) By virtue of the Enabling Act, the Issuer has been vested with all powers necessary 

and convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Enabling Act and to 
exercise all powers granted to it under the Enabling Act. 
 

(C) The Agency believes that the Proposed Sale will promote and maintain the job 
opportunities, general prosperity and economic welfare of the citizens of Montgomery County, 
New York and the State of New York and improve their standard of living; and  

 
(D) The Proposed Sale is desirable and in the public interest. 

 
Section 2. The execution and delivery by the Agency of an agreement relating to the Proposed 

Sale, together with any and all documents deemed necessary or advisable by Chairperson or Vice 
Chairperson of the Agency in connection with the Proposed Sale (collectively, the “Sale Documents”), are 
hereby approved, and any changes to any of the Sale Documents approved by the Chief Executive Officer 
of the Agency are hereby authorized and approved. 
 

 
- 2 - 

012178.00039 Business 23990867v1 



Section 3. The form and substance of the Sale Documents and any documents necessary and 
incidental thereto including, but not limited to, any documents approved by counsel to the Agency are 
hereby approved. 
 

Section 4. The Chairperson, Vice Chairperson or Chief Executive Officer of the Agency, either 
of them without the other, are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute, acknowledge (if 
appropriate) and deliver the Sale Documents and such other documents as may be necessary or appropriate 
in order to effectuate the execution and delivery of the Sale Documents, with such changes, variations, 
omissions and insertions as the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson or Chief Executive Officer shall approve, 
the execution thereof by the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson or Chief Executive Officer of the Agency to 
constitute conclusive evidence of such approval. 

 
Section 5. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized and directed 

for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required or provided for by the 
provisions of the Sale Documents, and to execute and deliver all such additional certificates, instruments 
and documents, to pay all such fees, charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may 
be necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the 
purposes of this resolution and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants and 
provisions of the Sale Documents binding upon the Agency, and all actions heretofore taken or taken 
hereinafter by the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer in furtherance of the actions 
authorized herein are ratified, confirmed, adopted and approved in all respects. 
 

Section 6. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, which 
resulted as follows: 
 

Matthew Beck VOTING YES 
Carol Shineman VOTING YES 
Cheryl Reese VOTING YES 
Laurie Weingart VOTING ABSENT 
Amanda Auricchio, Esq. VOTING ABSENT 
Mark Kowalczyk VOTING YES 
Brent Phetteplace VOTING YES 

 
The foregoing resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 

 
[Remainder of page left blank intentionally] 

 
- 3 - 

012178.00039 Business 23990867v1 



STATE OF NEW YORK  ) 
     ) SS.: 
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY ) 
 
 

I, the undersigned (Assistant) Secretary of Montgomery County Industrial Development Agency 
(the “Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I have compared the foregoing annexed extract of the 
minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the resolution contained therein, held on 
July 13, 2023 with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of 
said original and of such resolution contained therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same 
relates to the subject matters therein referred to. 

 
I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said meeting; (B) said 

meeting was in all respects duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the Public Officers Law (the “Open 
Meetings Law”), said meeting was open to the general public, and due notice of the time and place of said 
meeting was duly given in accordance with such Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the 
members of the Agency present throughout said meeting. 

 
I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force and effect 

and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Agency this 

____ day of September, 2023. 
 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
(Assistant) Secretary 

 
 
 
(SEAL) 

 
- 4 - 

012178.00039 Business 23990867v1 



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

PROPOSED SALE ASSETS 
 

See attached. 

A-1 
012178.00039 Business 23990867v1 



 

 

 
A-2 

012178.00039 Business 23990867v1 



UNIFORM TAX EXEMPTION POLICY AMENDMENTS  
APPROVING RESOLUTION 

 
A regular meeting of Montgomery County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) was 

convened in public session at the offices of the Agency located at 113 Park Drive, Fultonville, New York 
on July 13, 2023 at 3:03 o’clock p.m., local time. 
 

The meeting was called to order by the (Vice) Chairperson of the Agency and, upon roll being 
called, the following members of the Agency were: 
 
PRESENT: 
 

Matthew Beck Chairperson 
Carol Shineman Vice-Chairperson 
Cheryl Reese Treasurer 
Mark Kowalczyk Member 
Brent Phetteplace Member 

 
ABSENT: 
 

Laurie Weingart Secretary 
Amanda Auricchio, Esq. Member 

 
AGENCY STAFF PRESENT INCLUDED THE FOLLOWING: 
 

Kenneth F. Rose Chief Executive Officer 
Sheila Snell Chief Financial Officer 
Andrew Santillo Staff Assistant 
Vincenzo Nicosia 
Stephanie Battisti 

Director of Program Development 
Ec. Development Specialist 

Christopher C. Canada, Esq. Agency Counsel 
 

The following resolution was offered by Mark Kowalczyk, seconded by Cheryl Reese, to wit: 
 

Resolution No. 23-13 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING CERTAIN AMENDMENTS TO THE UNIFORM 
TAX EXEMPTION POLICY OF MONTGOMERY COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY.  

 
WHEREAS, Montgomery County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is authorized 

and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York, constituting Title 1 of 
Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended 
(the “Enabling Act”) and Chapter 666 of the 1970 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 
895-d of said General Municipal Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively 
referred to as the “Act”) to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, 
reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of manufacturing, warehousing, research, 
commercial and industrial facilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing 
economically sound commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and 
economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and standard of living, 
and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and 

 
012178.00039 Business 23989946v1 



 
WHEREAS, subsection (4) of Section 874 of the Act, as added by Chapters 356 and 357 of the 

Laws of 1993 of the State of New York, requires that the Agency establish a uniform tax exemption policy, 
with input from affected tax jurisdictions, providing for guidelines for the claiming of real property, 
mortgage recording and sales tax exemptions; and 

 
WHEREAS, after soliciting input from the affected tax jurisdictions within Montgomery County, 

New York, the Agency adopted a uniform tax exemption policy, as amended (as so amended, the “Existing 
UTEP”); and 

 
WHEREAS, in connection with certain laws affecting industrial development agencies in the State 

of New York that went into effect on December 16, 2022 (collectively, the “New Laws”), the Agency 
wishes to make certain amendments to the Existing UTEP to reflect the relevant provisions of the New 
Laws; and  

 
WHEREAS, a copy of the Agency’s Existing UTEP, as so amended, is attached as Exhibit A hereto 

(the Existing UTEP, as so revised, is referred to hereinafter as the “Amended UTEP”); and  
 
WHEREAS, since the amendments to the Existing UTEP would be made solely to reflect the 

relevant provisions of the New Laws rather than any changes to the business terms set forth therein, a public 
hearing is not required to be held under Section 874(4)(b) of the Act in connection therewith;   
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF MONTGOMERY COUNTY 
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The Agency makes the following findings and determinations with respect to the 
Amended UTEP: 
 

(A) The adoption by the Agency of the Amended UTEP constitutes continuing agency 
administration and management (not new programs or a major reordering of priorities), and is 
therefore a “Type II action” under Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 43-
B of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “SEQR Act”), and the regulations 
adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environment Conservation of the State of New 
York, being 6 NYCRR Part 617, as amended (the “Regulations”) (the SEQR Act and the 
Regulations being collectively referred to as “SEQRA”) and, according, no further action by the 
Agency under SEQRA is required;  

 
(B) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and 

convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all 
powers granted to it under the Act;  

 
(C) The Agency has reviewed a copy of the Amended UTEP. The Agency believes 

that adoption of the Amended UTEP will promote and maintain the job opportunities, general 
prosperity and economic welfare of the citizens of Montgomery County, New York and the State 
of New York and improve their standard of living; and  

 
(D) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to adopt the Amended 

UTEP. 
 

Section 2. The form, terms and substance of the Amended UTEP are hereby approved in all 
respects. 

 
- 2 - 

012178.00039 Business 23989946v1 



 
Section 3. The Agency hereby authorizes the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson and the Chief 

Executive Officer of the Agency to take all steps necessary to implement the Amended UTEP. 
 

Section 4. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, which 
resulted as follows: 
 

Matthew Beck VOTING YES 
Carol Shineman VOTING YES 
Cheryl Reese VOTING YES 
Laurie Weingart VOTING ABSENT 
Amanda Auricchio, Esq. VOTING ABSENT 
Mark Kowalczyk VOTING YES 
Brent Phetteplace VOTING YES 

 
The foregoing resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 

 
[Remainder of page left blank intentionally] 

 
- 3 - 

012178.00039 Business 23989946v1 



STATE OF NEW YORK  ) 
     ) SS.: 
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY ) 
 
 

I, the undersigned (Assistant) Secretary of Montgomery County Industrial Development Agency 
(the “Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I have compared the foregoing annexed extract of the 
minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the resolution contained therein, held on 
July 13, 2023 with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of 
said original and of such resolution contained therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same 
relates to the subject matters therein referred to. 

 
I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said meeting; (B) said 

meeting was in all respects duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the Public Officers Law (the “Open 
Meetings Law”), said meeting was open to the general public, and due notice of the time and place of said 
meeting was duly given in accordance with such Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the 
members of the Agency present throughout said meeting. 

 
I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force and effect 

and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Agency this 

____ day of September, 2023. 
 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
(Assistant) Secretary 

 
 
 
(SEAL) 

 
- 4 - 

012178.00039 Business 23989946v1 



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

AMENDED UTEP 
 

See attached. 
  

A-1 
012178.00039 Business 23989946v1 



 

 
A-2 

012178.00039 Business 23989946v1 



 

 
A-3 

012178.00039 Business 23989946v1 



 

 
A-4 

012178.00039 Business 23989946v1 



 

 
A-5 

012178.00039 Business 23989946v1 



 

 
A-6 

012178.00039 Business 23989946v1 



 

 
A-7 

012178.00039 Business 23989946v1 



 

 
A-8 

012178.00039 Business 23989946v1 



 

 
A-9 

012178.00039 Business 23989946v1 



 

 
A-10 

012178.00039 Business 23989946v1 



 

 
A-11 

012178.00039 Business 23989946v1 



 

 
A-12 

012178.00039 Business 23989946v1 



 

 

 
A-13 

012178.00039 Business 23989946v1 









Budget and Financial Plan

2024

Budgeted Revenues, Expenditures and changes in Current Net Assets

Breakdown for IDA Board Members

Aug-23

Last Year Current Year

REVENUE & FINANCIAL SOURCES Actual Actual Adopted Proposed Proposed Proposed
2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

Operating Revenues

Reimbursement Revenue (CAP 86, Land Reimb, 

Income from Sale of Land) 106,743$       30,000$      -$                    -$                    -$                    

Charges for Services Total 106,743$      30,000$     -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                    

Application Fee Revenue 2,000$           1,000$        2,000$            2,000$             2,000$             2,000$             

Agency Fees Revenue 116,593$       81,210$      100,000$        100,000$         100,000$         100,000$         

Cell Tower Lease 80,454$         40,227$      41,434$          42,677$           43,957$           45,276$           

NBT Lease Revenue -$                   3,744$        2,402$            276$                -$                    -$                    

NBT Rental Revenue (parking lot) 9,000$           6,000$        9,000$            9,000$             9,000$             9,000$             

Option/Deposits Revenue

Rental & Financing Income Total 208,047$      132,181$   154,836$       153,953$        154,957$        156,276$        

Other Operating Revenues 34,277$         27,489$      -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                    

Other Operating Revenues Total 34,277$        27,489$     -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                    

Nonoperating Revenues

Bank Interest General Fund 40$                11$             100$               100$                100$                100$                

Bank Interest USDA 104$              1,008$        1,000$            1,000$             1,000$             1,000$             

Bank Interest MMDA 3,589$           17,284$      15,000$          15,000$           15,000$           15,000$           

Investment Earnings Total 3,733$          18,303$     16,100$         16,100$          16,100$          16,100$          

State Subsidies/grants -$                -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                    

Federal Subsidies/grants -$                -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                    
Municipal Subsidies/grants EMIG -$                -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                    
Municipal Subsidies/grants NIMO 50,000$      -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                    

Public Authority Subsidies -$                -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                    

GrantsTotal -$                  50,000$     -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                    

Other Nonoperating RevenuesTotal -$                  -$               -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                    

Proceeds from the issuance of debt Total -$                  -$               -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                    

Total Revenues and Financing Sources 352,800$      257,973$   170,936$       170,053$        171,057$        172,376$        



EXPENDITURES

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027

Operating Expenditures

Salaries & Wages 44,000$         22,000$      59,000$          59,000$           59,000$           59,000$           

Other employee Benefits 5,924$           3,302$        5,200$            5,200$             5,200$             5,200$             

County Administration Fees 17,500$         17,500$          17,500$           17,500$           17,500$           

Audit Fees 9,000$           9,000$        9,000$            9,000$             9,000$             9,000$             

Professional Fees 184,928$       64,250$      20,000$          20,000$           20,000$           20,000$           

Abstract Fees -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                    

Appraisal Fees 5,000$           3,000$            3,000$             3,000$             3,000$             

Legal Fees 2,664$           6,500$            6,500$             6,500$             6,500$             

Engineering Fees 20,000$          20,000$           20,000$           20,000$           
Land Transactions

          Loss on Transfer of Land -$                -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                    

          Loss on Impaired Assets -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                    

          Improvements for Land Acquisitions  

(Reimbursable expense)

Professional services contracts Total 269,016$      98,552$     140,200$       140,200$        140,200$        140,200$        

General Office Expense 35,076$         15,395$      8,000$            8,000$             8,000$             8,000$             
Postage 50$                 50$                  50$                  50$                  

Supplies & Materials Total 35,076$        15,395$     8,050$           8,050$            8,050$            8,050$            

Mileage Reimbursement -$                   -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                    
Marketing Expense
Advertising Expense 1,200$            1,200$             1,200$             1,200$             
Food & Entertainment Expense 500$               500$                500$                500$                
Conferences and Professional Devlp Expense 500$               500$                500$                500$                
Insurance Expense 10,537$         6,176$        7,150$            7,150$             7,150$             7,150$             
Admin Expenses 3,055$           1,842$        -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                    
Glen Park Maintenance Expense -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                    
Florida Park Ext Maintenance Expense 3,500$            3,500$             3,500$             3,500$             
Depreciation Expense 3,251$           2,167$        3,251$            3,251$             -$                    -$                    
Options - Upfront Land Costs 
Legal Ads Expense 92$             200$               200$                200$                200$                
Travel & Lodging Expense
Other - Bank Serv Charge-Taxes-Misc 472$              400$           500$               500$                500$                500$                

Other operating expenditures Total

Nonoperating Expenditures 17,315$        10,677$     16,801$         16,801$          13,550$          13,550$          

Grants 

Donations -$                   -$                -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                    

PILOTS -$                   -$                -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                    

Other nonoperating expenditures (Bad Debt) -$                   -$                -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                    

Nonoperating Expenditures Total -$                   -$                -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                    

-$                  -$               -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                    

Total Expenditures

Capital Contributions 321,407$       124,624$    165,051$        165,051$         161,800$         161,800$         

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and capital contributions over expenditures -$                   -$                -$                   -$                    -$                    -$                    

31,393$         133,349$    5,885$            5,002$             9,257$             10,576$           



Public Hearing in re: Montgomery County IDA 
Golf Course Apartments, LLC

August 24, 2023

Covering All Upstate New York

www.mfreportingny.com



Montgomery County Industrial Development Agency

MRB Cost Benefit Calculator Cost-Benefit Analysis Tool powered by MRB Group

Date

Project Title

Project Location

Summary of Economic Impacts over the Life of the PILOT

Project Total Investment

$3,750,000 Temporary (Construction)

Direct Indirect Total

Jobs 14 4 18

Earnings $981,612 $183,142 $1,164,754

Local Spend $3,000,000 $773,969 $3,773,969

Ongoing (Operations)

Aggregate over life of the PILOT

Direct Indirect Total

Jobs 3 1 4

Earnings $5,502,255 $945,969 $6,448,224

             Figure 1

          Net Benefits chart will always display construction through year 10, irrespective of the length of the PILOT.

Figure 2

© Copyright 2021 MRB Engineering, Architecture and Surveying, D.P.C. Ongoing earnings are all earnings over the life of the PILOT.

August 25, 2023

Golf Course Active Adult Apartments

Amsterdam

Figure 3

Economic Impacts

0 5 10 15 20

Ongoing

Temporary

Total Jobs

Direct Indirect

$0 $1,000,000 $2,000,000 $3,000,000 $4,000,000 $5,000,000 $6,000,000 $7,000,000

Ongoing

Temporary

Total Earnings

Direct Indirect

-$500,000

$0

$500,000

$1,000,000

$1,500,000

$2,000,000

$2,500,000

Net Benefits

Benefits Costs Net Benefits



Cost-Benefit Analysis Tool powered by MRB Group

Estimated Costs of Exemptions

Nominal Value Discounted Value*

Property Tax Exemption $313,093 $269,773

Sales Tax Exemption $240,000 $240,000

Local Sales Tax Exemption $120,000 $120,000

State Sales Tax Exemption $120,000 $120,000

Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption $22,500 $22,500

Local Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption $7,500 $7,500

State Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption $15,000 $15,000

Total Costs $575,593 $532,273

State and Local Benefits

Nominal Value Discounted Value*

Local Benefits

To Private Individuals

Temporary Payroll

Ongoing Payroll

Other Payments to Private Individuals

To the Public

Increase in Property Tax Revenue

Temporary Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue

Ongoing Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue

Other Local Municipal Revenue

State Benefits

To the Public

Temporary Income Tax Revenue

Ongoing Income Tax Revenue

Temporary Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue

Ongoing Jobs - Sales Tax Revenue

Total Benefits to State & Region

Benefit to Cost Ratio 

Ratio

Local 18:1

State 3:1

Grand Total 14:1

*Discounted at 2% 

             Does the IDA believe that the project can be accomplished in a timely fashion? Yes

© Copyright 2021 MRB Engineering, Architecture and Surveying, D.P.C.

$0 $0

$0 $0

$357,658 $297,265

$304,367 $247,959

$8,153 $8,153

$45,138 $41,153

“Applicant is a Veteran owned Certified Business and at least 90 percent of the contractors are from Montgomery County”

Fiscal Impacts

Additional Comments from IDA

Benefit*

$7,970,636 $7,341,014

$7,612,978 $7,043,749

$1,164,754

$6,448,224

$1,164,754

$5,878,995

$52,414

$264,555

$8,153

$395,875 $366,275

$395,875 $366,275

$52,414

$7,707,289$8,366,510

$7,707,289 $532,273

$290,170

$8,153

$45,138

Cost*

$7,341,014

$366,275

$397,273

$135,000

$41,153



 Public Hearing in re: Montgomery County IDA
Golf Course Apartments, LLC

 1
  

  
       ____________________________________________
  
                  MONTGOMERY COUNTY
  
           INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY
  
  
  
                   PUBLIC HEARING
  
         RE:  GOLF COURSE APARTMENTS, LLC
  
       ____________________________________________
  
                          August 24, 2023
  
                          11:00 a.m. - 11:15 a.m.
  
  
  
                          Town of Amsterdam
  
                          Municipal Building
  
                          283 Manny Corners Road
  
                          Amsterdam, New York 12010
  
  
  
  
  
       Reported By:  Brenda J. O'Connor-Marello, CSR
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 

MF REPORTING, INC. (518) 478-7220
MFReportingNY.com



012178.00092 Business 24085938v2

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
ON PROPOSED PROJECT

AND FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE
RELATING THERETO 

Notice is hereby given that a public hearing pursuant to Section 859-a(2) of the General 
Municipal Law of the State of New York (the “Act”) will be held by the Montgomery County Industrial 
Development Agency (the “Agency”) on the 24th day of August, 2023 at 11:00 o’clock a.m., local time at 
the Town of Amsterdam Municipal Building located at 283 Manny’s Corners Road in the Town of 
Amsterdam, Montgomery County, New York in connection with the following matters:

Golf Course Apartments, LLC, a New York State limited liability company (the “Company”), 
submitted an application (the “Application”) to the Agency, a copy of which Application is on file at the 
office of the Agency, which Application requested that the Agency consider undertaking a project (the 
“Project”) for the benefit of the Company, said Project consisting of the following: (A) (1) the acquisition 
of an interest in an approximately 8.10 acre parcel of land located at 383 Golf Course Road (Tax Map No. 
24.-6-24.11) in the Town of Amsterdam, Montgomery County, New York (the “Land”), (2) the 
construction on the Land of approximately five (5) 12,000 square foot buildings (collectively, the 
“Facility”), and (3) the acquisition and installation of certain machinery and equipment therein and 
thereon (the “Equipment”) (the Land, the Facility and the Equipment hereinafter referred to as the 
“Project Facility”), all of the foregoing to be owned by the Company and leased to and operated by Dan 
Vann Property Management, LLC (the “Sublessee”), as an apartment complex for adults 55 years or older 
and other directly or indirectly related activities; (B) the granting of certain “financial assistance” (within 
the meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect to the foregoing, including potential exemptions 
from certain sales and use taxes, real property taxes, real estate transfer taxes and mortgage recording 
taxes (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”); and (C) the lease (with an obligation to purchase) or sale 
of the Project Facility to the Company or such other person as may be designated by the Company and 
agreed upon by the Agency.

The Agency is considering whether (A) to undertake the Project and (B) to provide certain 
exemptions from taxation with respect to the Project, including (1) exemption from mortgage recording 
taxes with respect to any documents, if any, recorded by the Agency with respect to the Project in the 
office of the County Clerk of Montgomery County, New York or elsewhere, (2) exemption from deed 
transfer taxes on any real estate transfers, if any, with respect to the Project, (3) exemption from sales 
taxes relating to the acquisition, construction and installation of the Project Facility, and (4) in the event 
that the Project Facility would be subject to real property taxation if owned by the Company but shall be 
deemed exempt from real property taxation due to the involvement of the Agency therewith, exemption 
from real property taxes (but not including special assessments and special ad valorem levies), if any, 
with respect to the Project Facility, subject to the obligation of the Company to make payments in lieu of 
taxes with respect to the Project Facility. If any portion of the Financial Assistance to be granted by the 
Agency with respect to the Project is not consistent with the Agency’s uniform tax exemption policy, the 
Agency will follow the procedures for deviation from such policy set forth in Section 874(4) of the Act 
prior to granting such portion of the Financial Assistance.

If the Agency determines to proceed with the Project, the Project Facility will be acquired, 
constructed, and installed by the Agency and will be leased (with an obligation to purchase) or sold by the 
Agency to the Company or its designee pursuant to a project agreement (the “Agreement”) requiring that 
the Company or its designee make certain payments to the Agency.

The Agency has not yet made a determination pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental 
Conservation Law (the “SEQR Act”) regarding the potential environmental impact of the Project.



2
012178.00092 Business 24085938v2

The Agency will at said time and place hear all persons with views on either the location and 
nature of the proposed Project, or the Financial Assistance being contemplated by the Agency in 
connection with the proposed Project. A copy of the Application filed by the Company with the Agency 
with respect to the Project, including an analysis of the costs and benefits of the Project, is available for 
public inspection during business hours at the offices of the Agency. A transcript or summary report of 
the hearing will be made available to the members of the Agency.

Additional information can be obtained from, and written comments may be addressed to: 
Kenneth F. Rose, Chief Executive Officer, Montgomery County Industrial Development Agency, Old 
County Court House, 9 Park Street, P.O. Box 1500, Fonda, New York 12068; Telephone: 518-853-8334.

Dated: August ___, 2023.

MONTGOMERY COUNTY INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY

BY:
Kenneth F. Rose
Chief Executive Officer



 Public Hearing in re: Montgomery County IDA
Golf Course Apartments, LLC

 2
  

  
1       APPEARANCES:
  

2       Kenneth F. Rose - CEO/Director
  

3       Vincenzo Nicosia - Director of Program
  

4                          Development
  

5       David Thibodeau - Deputy Supervisor/Councilman
  

6  
  

7  
  

8  
  

9       ALSO PRESENT:
  

10       Dan Roth - Project Owner
  

11  
  

12  
  

13  
  

14  
  

15  
  

16  
  

17  
  

18  
  

19  
  

20  
  

21  
  

22  
  

23  
  

24  
  

25  
 

MF REPORTING, INC. (518) 478-7220
MFReportingNY.com



 Public Hearing in re: Montgomery County IDA
Golf Course Apartments, LLC

 3
  

  
1                     HEARING OFFICER:  My name is
  

2               Kenneth Rose.  I'm the chief
  

3               executive officer of the Montgomery
  

4               County Industrial Development Agency
  

5               in connection with a project which
  

6               is the subject of this public
  

7               hearing.
  

8                     Today I'm holding this public
  

9               hearing to allow citizens to make a
  

10               statement for the record relating to
  

11               the involvement of the Agency with
  

12               respect to the Proposed Project for
  

13               the benefit of Golf Course Road
  

14               Apartments, LLC.
  

15                     The Proposed Project consists
  

16               of the following:
  

17                     The acquisition of interest in
  

18               an approximately 8.10-acre parcel of
  

19               land located at 383 Golf Course Road
  

20               in the town of Amsterdam.
  

21                     The construction of
  

22               approximately five (5) 12,000
  

23               square-foot buildings;
  

24                     The granting of certain
  

25               Financial Assistance within the
 

MF REPORTING, INC. (518) 478-7220
MFReportingNY.com



 Public Hearing in re: Montgomery County IDA
Golf Course Apartments, LLC

 4
  

  
1               meaning of Section 854(14);
  

2                     Lease (with an obligation to
  

3               purchase) or sale of the Project
  

4               Facility to the Company.
  

5                     The purpose of the public
  

6               hearing, pursuant to Section 859-a
  

7               of the General Municipal Law of the
  

8               State of New York, prior to any city
  

9               providing any financial assistance
  

10               of more than $100,000 to any
  

11               project, the Agency, among other
  

12               things, must hold a public hearing
  

13               pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act
  

14               with respect to said Project.
  

15                     Since the Proposed Financial
  

16               Assistance be provided by the Agency
  

17               with respect to the Proposed Project
  

18               may exceed $100,000, prior to
  

19               providing any financial assistance,
  

20               as defined in the Act, the Agency
  

21               must hold a public hearing on the
  

22               nature and location of the Proposed
  

23               Project Facility and the Proposed
  

24               Financial Assistance to be provided
  

25               by the Agency with respect to the
 

MF REPORTING, INC. (518) 478-7220
MFReportingNY.com



 Public Hearing in re: Montgomery County IDA
Golf Course Apartments, LLC

 5
  

  
1               Proposed Project.
  

2                     After the adoption of the
  

3               public hearing resolution, the CEO
  

4               of the Agency caused a copy of the
  

5               public hearing resolution to be
  

6               mailed on August 16, 2023, to the
  

7               chief executive officer of
  

8               Montgomery County, the Town of
  

9               Amsterdam, and the Greater Amsterdam
  

10               School District.
  

11                     Additionally, the chief
  

12               executive officer of the Agency
  

13               caused notice of this public hearing
  

14               to be (A) mailed on August 10th,
  

15               2023, to the chief executive
  

16               officers of Montgomery County, Town
  

17               of Amsterdam, and the Greater
  

18               Amsterdam School District, published
  

19               on August 12th, 2023, in The
  

20               Recorder, a newspaper of general
  

21               circulation available to residents
  

22               of Montgomery County, New York, and
  

23               (2) be posted on August 10th, 2023,
  

24               on the Agency's website, and also on
  

25               the public bulleting board located
 

MF REPORTING, INC. (518) 478-7220
MFReportingNY.com



 Public Hearing in re: Montgomery County IDA
Golf Course Apartments, LLC

 6
  

  
1               in the lobby of the offices of the
  

2               MCIDA located at 113 Park Drive in
  

3               the Village of Fultonville -- or
  

4               actually, in the Town of Glen,
  

5               Montgomery County, New York.
  

6                     Copies of this public hearing
  

7               are available on the table.
  

8                     Now, unless there's any
  

9               objection, I'm going to suggest
  

10               waiving the full reading of the
  

11               notice of the public hearing and,
  

12               instead, request that the full text
  

13               of the notice of this public hearing
  

14               be inserted into the record of this
  

15               public hearing.
  

16                     The comments received today at
  

17               this public hearing will be
  

18               presented to members of the Agency
  

19               at or prior to the meeting, at which
  

20               the members of the Agency will
  

21               consider whether to approve the
  

22               undertaking of the Proposed Project
  

23               by the Agency and the granting by
  

24               the Agency of any financial
  

25               assistance in excess of $100,000
 

MF REPORTING, INC. (518) 478-7220
MFReportingNY.com



 Public Hearing in re: Montgomery County IDA
Golf Course Apartments, LLC

 7
  

  
1               with respect to the Proposed
  

2               Project.
  

3                     I will now introduce Dan Roth
  

4               with the company.  If you'd like to
  

5               speak, Dan, now will be your time to
  

6               speak about the project?
  

7                     MR. ROTH:  I'm Dan Roth,
  

8               Principal of Golf Course Road
  

9               Apartments, LLC.
  

10                     We're excited to bring in
  

11               much-needed use within the town.  I
  

12               think this is a fantastic
  

13               opportunity that locals can take
  

14               advantage of this housing stock that
  

15               we have.
  

16                     I appreciate the Montgomery
  

17               County IDA to review our package.
  

18               We appreciate the Town being
  

19               hospitable with everything we've
  

20               down so far in the town and being
  

21               very proactive business-wise.  And
  

22               we look forward to making this a
  

23               finished project.
  

24                     HEARING OFFICER:  Thank you,
  

25               Dan.
 

MF REPORTING, INC. (518) 478-7220
MFReportingNY.com



 Public Hearing in re: Montgomery County IDA
Golf Course Apartments, LLC

 8
  

  
1                     If Dan has nothing else, I
  

2               will now open up this public hearing
  

3               for public comment at 11:04 a.m.
  

4                     If you want to be called upon,
  

5               please wait to be recognized.  And
  

6               once recognized, please just state
  

7               your name and address for the
  

8               record.
  

9                     So with that, I'll open up the
  

10               public hearing.
  

11                         * * *
  

12                     (The record remains open for
  

13               public comment.)
  

14                         * * *
  

15                     HEARING OFFICER:  All right.
  

16               So if there -- There were no public
  

17               comments.  So I will now close the
  

18               public hearing at 11:15 a.m.  And
  

19               thank you all for attending.
  

20                         * * *
  

21                     (Whereupon, the proceedings
  

22               concluded at 11:15 a.m.)
  

23                         * * *
  

24  
  

25  
 

MF REPORTING, INC. (518) 478-7220
MFReportingNY.com



 Public Hearing in re: Montgomery County IDA
Golf Course Apartments, LLC

 9
  

  
1           SHORTHAND REPORTER CERTIFICATION
  

2       STATE OF NEW YORK:
       COUNTY OF SARATOGA:

3  
           I, BRENDA J. O'CONNOR-MARELLO, a certified

4       shorthand reporter of the State of New York, do
       hereby certify:

5  
           That the proceedings within was taken before

6       me at the time and place herein set forth; that
       any witnesses in the foregoing proceedings prior

7       to testifying were duly sworn; that a record of
       the proceedings was made by me using machine

8       shorthand, which was thereafter transcribed
       under my direction and supervision; that the

9       foregoing transcript is a true record of the
       testimony given.

10  
           Further, that if the foregoing pertains to

11       the original transcript of a deposition in a
       federal case, before completion of the

12       proceedings, review of the transcript [  ] was
       [  ] was not requested.

13  
           I further certify I am neither financially

14       interested in the action nor a relative or
       employee of any attorney or party to this

15       action.
  

16  
  

17       Dated:   August 23, 2023
  

18  
  

19  
  

20 

                  
21                BRENDA J. O'CONNOR-MARELLO, CSR
                 NYS License No.: 001088-1

22  
                Notary Public, State of New York.

23                Qualified in Saratoga County
                Commission Expires:  April 4, 2026

24  
  

25  
 

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

MF REPORTING, INC. (518) 478-7220
MFReportingNY.com



 
 Public Hearing in re: Montgomery County IDA

 Golf Course Apartments, LLC 1

$100000  4:10,18 6:25
0010881  9:001088
10th  5:14,23
12th  5:19
810acre  3:18
859a  4:6,13
[  9:12,12
]  9:12,12
about  7:6
acquisition  3:17
act  4:13,20
action  9:14,15
actually  6:4
additionally  5:11
address  8:7
adoption  5:2
advantage  7:14
after  5:2
agency 3 3:4,11
4:11,16,20,25 5:4,12
6:18,20,23,24 (13)
agency's  5:24
allow  3:9
also  2:9 5:24
am 9,9 8:3,18,22 9:13
(6)
among  4:11
amsterdam 11,14 3:20
5:9,9,17,18 (7)
apartments 6 3:14 7:9
appearances  2:1
appreciate  7:16,18
approve  6:21
approximately 
3:18,22
april  9:4
are  6:7
assistance  3:25
4:9,16,19,24 6:25 (6)
attending  8:19
attorney  9:14
august 8 5:6,14,19,23
9:17 (6)
available  5:21 6:7
before  9:5,11
being  7:18,20
benefit  3:13
board  5:25
brenda 17 9:3,21
bring  7:10
building 12
buildings  3:23
bulleting  5:25

businesswise  7:21
called  8:4
can  7:13
case  9:11
caused  5:4,13
ceo  5:3
ceodirector  2:2
certain  3:24
certification  9:1
certified  9:3
certify  9:4,13
chief  3:2 5:7,11,15 (4)
circulation  5:21
citizens  3:9
city  4:8
close  8:17
comment  8:3,13
comments  6:16 8:17
company  4:4 7:4
completion  9:11
concluded  8:22
connection  3:5
consider  6:21
consists  3:15
construction  3:21
copies  6:6
copy  5:4
corners 13
county 2 3:4 5:8,16,22
6:5 7:17 9:2,23 (9)
course 6 3:13,19 7:8
(4)
csr 17 9:21
dan  2:10 7:3,5,7,25
8:1 (6)
dated  9:17
david  2:5
defined  4:20
deposition  9:11
deputy  2:5
development 3 2:4 3:4
direction  9:8
director  2:3
district  5:10,18
down  7:20
drive  6:2
duly  9:7
else  8:1
employee  9:14
everything  7:19
exceed  4:18
excess  6:25
excited  7:10

executive  3:3
5:7,12,15 (4)
expires  9:4
f  2:2
facility  4:4,23
fantastic  7:12
far  7:20
federal  9:11
financial  3:25
4:9,15,19,24 6:24 (6)
financially  9:13
finished  7:23
five  3:22
following  3:16
foregoing  9:6,9,10
forth  9:6
forward  7:22
full  6:10,12
fultonville  6:3
further  9:10,13
general  4:7 5:20
given  9:9
glen  6:4
going  6:9
golf 6 3:13,19 7:8 (4)
granting  3:24 6:23
greater  5:9,17
has  8:1
hearing 5 3:1,7,9
4:6,12,21 5:3,5,13
6:6,11,13,15,17 7:24
8:2,10,15,18 (20)
hereby  9:4
herein  9:6
hold  4:12,21
holding  3:8
hospitable  7:19
housing  7:14
i'll  8:9
i'm  3:2,8 6:9 7:7 (4)
ida  7:17
industrial 3 3:4
inserted  6:14
instead  6:12
interest  3:17
interested  9:14
into  6:14
introduce  7:3
involvement  3:11
is  3:1,6 7:12 9:9 (4)
j 17 9:3,21
just  8:6
kenneth  2:2 3:2

land  3:19
law  4:7
lease  4:2
license  9:001088
like  7:4
llc 6 3:14 7:9
lobby  6:1
locals  7:13
located  3:19 5:25 6:2
location  4:22
look  7:22
machine  9:7
made  9:7
mailed  5:6,14
make  3:9
making  7:22
manny 13
may  4:18
mcida  6:2
me  9:6,7
meaning  4:1
meeting  6:19
members  6:18,20
montgomery 2 3:3
5:8,16,22 6:5 7:16 (7)
more  4:10
muchneeded  7:11
municipal 12 4:7
must  4:12,21
my  3:1 9:8
name  3:1 8:7
nature  4:22
neither  9:13
new 14 4:8 5:22 6:5
9:2,4,22 (7)
newspaper  5:20
nicosia  2:3
no  8:16 9:001088
nor  9:14
notary  9:22
nothing  8:1
notice  5:13 6:11,13
now  6:8 7:3,5 8:2,17
(5)
o'connormarello 17
9:3,21
objection  6:9
obligation  4:2
officer  3:1,3 5:7,12
7:24 8:15 (6)
officers  5:16
offices  6:1
once  8:6

MF REPORTING, INC. (518) 478-7220
MFReportingNY.com



 
 Public Hearing in re: Montgomery County IDA

 Golf Course Apartments, LLC 2

open  8:2,9,12
opportunity  7:13
original  9:11
other  4:11
our  7:17
owner  2:10
package  7:17
parcel  3:18
park  6:2
party  9:14
pertains  9:10
place  9:6
please  8:5,6
posted  5:23
present  2:9
presented  6:18
principal  7:8
prior  4:8,18 6:19 9:6
(4)
proactive  7:21
proceedings  8:21
9:5,6,7,12 (5)
program  2:3
project  2:10 3:5,12,15
4:3,11,14,17,23 5:1
6:22 7:2,6,23 (14)
proposed  3:12,15
4:15,17,22,23 5:1 6:22
7:1 (9)
provided  4:16,24
providing  4:9,19
public 5 3:6,8
4:5,12,21 5:3,5,13,25
6:6,11,13,15,17
8:2,3,10,13,16,18 9:22
(22)
published  5:18
purchase  4:3
purpose  4:5
pursuant  4:6,13
qualified  9:23
re 6
reading  6:10
received  6:16
recognized  8:5,6
record  3:10 6:14
8:8,12 9:7,9 (6)
recorder  5:20
relating  3:10
relative  9:14
remains  8:12
reported 17
reporter  9:1,4

request  6:12
requested  9:12
residents  5:21
resolution  5:3,5
respect  3:12
4:14,17,25 7:1 (5)
review  7:17 9:12
right  8:15
road 13 3:13,19 7:8
(4)
rose  2:2 3:2
roth  2:10 7:3,7,7 (4)
said  4:14
sale  4:3
saratoga  9:2,23
school  5:10,18
section  4:1,6,13
set  9:6
shorthand  9:1,4,8
signature  9:20
since  4:15
so  7:20 8:9,16,17 (4)
speak  7:5,6
squarefoot  3:23
state  4:8 8:6 9:2,4,22
(5)
statement  3:10
stock  7:14
subject  3:6
suggest  6:9
supervision  9:8

  2:5
sworn  9:7
table  6:7
take  7:13
taken  9:5
testifying  9:7
testimony  9:9
text  6:12
than  4:10
thank  7:24 8:19
there's  6:8
thereafter  9:8
thibodeau  2:5
things  4:12
think  7:12
time  7:5 9:6
today  3:8 6:16
town 11 3:20 5:8,16
6:4 7:11,18,20 (8)

transcribed  9:8
transcript  9:9,11,12
true  9:9
under  9:8
undertaking  6:22
unless  6:8
up  8:2,9
upon  8:4
use  7:11
using  9:7
very  7:21
village  6:3
vincenzo  2:3
wait  8:5
waiving  6:10
want  8:4
we're  7:10
we've  7:19
website  5:24
whereupon  8:21
whether  6:21
which  3:5 6:19 9:8
will  6:17,20 7:3,5
8:2,17 (6)
within  3:25 7:11 9:5
witnesses  9:6
york 14 4:8 5:22 6:5
9:2,4,22 (7)
you'd  7:4
your  7:5 8:7
283 13
383  3:19
1100 9
1104  8:3
1115 9 8:18,22
2023 8 5:6,15,19,23
9:17 (6)
2026  9:4
12000  3:22
12010 14
85414  4:1

Powered by TCPDF (www.tcpdf.org)

MF REPORTING, INC. (518) 478-7220
MFReportingNY.com



RESOLUTION CONFIRMING SEQR DETERMINATION 
GOLF COURSE APARTMENTS, LLC PROJECT 

 
A regular meeting of Montgomery County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) was 

convened in public session at the offices of the Agency located at the 113 Park Drive, Fultonville, New 
York on September 21, 2023 at 3:00 o’clock p.m., local time. 
 

The meeting was called to order by the (Vice) Chairperson of the Agency and, upon roll being 
called, the following members of the Agency were: 
 
PRESENT: 
 

Matthew Beck Chairperson 
Carol Shineman Vice Chairperson 
Cheryl Reese Treasurer 
Laurie Weingart Secretary 
Amanda Auricchio, Esq. Member 
Mark Kowalczyk Member 
Brent E. Phetteplace Member 

 
ABSENT: 
 

    
    

 
AGENCY STAFF PRESENT INCLUDED THE FOLLOWING: 
 

Kenneth F. Rose Chief Executive Officer 
Sheila Snell Chief Financial Officer 
Andrew Santillo Staff Assistant 
Vincenzo Nicosia 
Stephanie Battisti 

Director of Program Development 
Ec. Development Specialist 

A. Joseph Scott, III, Esq. Agency Counsel 
 

The following resolution was offered by ____________________, seconded by 
____________________, to wit: 

 
Resolution No. 23-14 

 
RESOLUTION CONCURRING IN THE DETERMINATION BY TOWN OF 
AMSTERDAM PLANNING BOARD, AS LEAD AGENCY FOR THE 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW OF THE GOLF COURSE APARTMENTS, LLC 
PROPOSED PROJECT. 

 
WHEREAS, Montgomery County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is authorized 

and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York, constituting Title 1 of 
Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended 
(the  “Enabling Act”) and Chapter 666 of the 1970 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 
895-d of said General Municipal Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively 
referred to as the “Act”) to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, 
reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of manufacturing, warehousing, research, 

 
 
012178.00092 Business 24336926v1 



commercial and industrial facilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing 
economically sound commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and 
economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and standard of living, 
and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and 
 

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and empowered under the 
Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more “ projects” (as defined in the Act) or to cause 
said projects to be acquired, constructed, reconstructed and installed, and to convey said projects or to lease 
said projects with the obligation to purchase; and 

 
WHEREAS, Golf Course Apartments, LLC, a New York State limited liability company (the 

“Company”), submitted an application (the “Application”) to the Agency, a copy of which Application is 
on file at the office of the Agency, which Application requested that the Agency consider undertaking a 
project (the “Project”) for the benefit of the Company, said Project consisting of the following: (A) (1) the 
acquisition of an interest in an approximately 8.10 acre parcel of land located at 383 Golf Course Road 
(Tax Map No. 24.-6-24.11) in the Town of Amsterdam, Montgomery County, New York (the “Land”), (2) 
the construction on the Land of approximately five (5) 12,000 square foot buildings (collectively, the 
“Facility”), and (3) the acquisition and installation of certain machinery and equipment therein and thereon 
(the “Equipment”) (the Land, the Facility and the Equipment hereinafter referred to as the “Project 
Facility”), all of the foregoing to be owned by the Company and leased to and operated by Dan Vann 
Property Management, LLC (the “Sublessee”), as an apartment complex for adults 55 years or older and 
other directly or indirectly related activities; (B) the granting of certain “financial assistance” (within the 
meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect to the foregoing, including potential exemptions from 
certain sales and use taxes, real property taxes, real estate transfer taxes and mortgage recording taxes 
(collectively, the “Financial Assistance”); and (C) the lease (with an obligation to purchase) or sale of the 
Project Facility to the Company or such other person as may be designated by the Company and agreed 
upon by the Agency; and 

 
WHEREAS, by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on July 13, 2023 (the “Public 

Hearing Resolution”), the Agency authorized a public hearing to be held pursuant to Section 859-a of the 
Act with respect to the Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the authorization contained in the Public Hearing Resolution, the Chief 

Executive Officer of the Agency (A) caused notice of a public hearing of the Agency (the “Public Hearing”) 
pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act, to hear all persons interested in the Project and the financial assistance 
being contemplated by the Agency with respect to the Project, to be mailed on August 10, 2023 to the chief 
executive officers of the county and of each city, town, village and school district in which the Project is or 
is to be located; (B) caused notice of the Public Hearing to be posted on August 10, 2023 on a public bulletin 
board located at 113 Park Drive in the Village of Fultonville and Town of Glen, Montgomery County, New 
York, as well as on the Agency’s website; (C) caused notice of the Public Hearing to be published on 
August 12, 2023 in The Recorder, a newspaper of general circulation available to the residents of Town of 
Amsterdam, Montgomery County, New York; (D) conducted the Public Hearing on August 24, 2023 at 
11:00 a.m., local time at the Town of Amsterdam Municipal Building located at 283 Manny’s Corners Road 
in the Town of Amsterdam, Montgomery County, New York; (E) prepared a report of the Public Hearing 
(the “Public Hearing Report”) which fairly summarized the views presented at such Public Hearing and 
caused copies of said Public Hearing Report to be made available to the members of the Agency and (F) 
caused a copy of the certified Public Hearing Resolution to be sent via certified mail return receipt requested 
on August 16, 2023 to the chief executive officers of the County and of each city, town, village and school 
district in which the Project Facility is to be located to comply with the requirements of Section 859-a of 
the Act; and 

 
 

- 2 - 
012178.00092 Business 24336926v1 



WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 43-B of the 
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “SEQR Act”) and the regulations (the “Regulations”) 
adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation of the State of New York 
(collectively with the SEQR Act, “SEQRA”), the Agency has been informed that (1) the Town of 
Amsterdam Planning Board (the “Planning Board”) was designated to act as “lead agency” with respect to 
the Project, and (2) the Planning Board issued a Determination of Non Significance on November 2, 2022 
(the “2022 Negative Declaration”), which 2022 Negative Declaration was supplemented by the Planning 
Board’s negative declaration issued on July 5, 2023 (the “Negative Declaration”) attached hereto as Exhibit 
A, determining that the acquisition, construction and installation of the Project Facility will not have a 
“significant effect on the environment”; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Agency is an “involved agency” with respect to the Project and the Agency now 

desires to concur in the determination by the Planning Board, as “lead agency” with respect to the Project, 
to acknowledge receipt of a copy of the Negative Declaration and to indicate whether the Agency has any 
information to suggest that the Planning Board was incorrect in determining that the Project will not have 
a “significant effect on the environment” pursuant to SEQRA and, therefore, that no environmental impact 
statement need be prepared with respect to the Project; 

  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The Agency has received copies of, and has reviewed, the Application, the 2022 
Negative Declaration and the Negative Declaration (collectively, the “Reviewed Documents”) and, based 
upon said Reviewed Documents, the Agency hereby ratifies and concurs in the designation of the Planning 
Board as “lead agency” with respect to the Project under SEQRA (as such quoted term is defined in 
SEQRA). 

 
Section 2. The Agency hereby determines that the Agency has no information to suggest that 

the Planning Board was incorrect in determining that the Project will not have a “significant effect on the 
environment” pursuant to the SEQRA and, therefore, that environmental impact statement need not be 
prepared with respect to the Project (as such quoted phrase is used in SEQRA). 
 

Section 3. The members of the Agency are hereby directed to notify the Planning Board of 
the concurrence by the Agency that the Planning Board shall be the “lead agency” with respect to the 
Project, and to further indicate to the Planning Board that the Agency has no information to suggest that 
the Planning Board was incorrect in its determinations contained in the Negative Declaration. 

 
Section 4. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 
The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, which 

resulted as follows: 
 

Matthew Beck VOTING __________ 
Carol Shineman VOTING __________ 
Amanda Auricchio, Esq. VOTING __________ 
Mark Kowalczyk VOTING __________ 
Brent E. Phetteplace VOTING __________ 
Cheryl Reese VOTING __________ 
Laurie Weingart VOTING __________ 

 
The foregoing resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 

 
- 3 - 

012178.00092 Business 24336926v1 



STATE OF NEW YORK ) 
 ) SS.: 
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY ) 
 
 

I, the undersigned Secretary of Montgomery County Industrial Development Agency (the 
“Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I have compared the foregoing annexed extract of the minutes of 
the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the resolution contained therein, held on September 
21, 2023 with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of said 
original and of such resolution contained therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same relates 
to the subject matters therein referred to. 
 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said meeting; (B) 
said meeting was in all respects duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the Public Officers Law (the “Open 
Meetings Law”), said meeting was open to the general public, and due notice of the time and place of said 
meeting was duly given in accordance with such Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the 
members of the Agency present throughout said meeting. 
 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force and effect 
and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Agency this 
_____ day of September, 2023. 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
Secretary 

 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 

 
- 4 - 

012178.00092 Business 24336926v1 



EXHIBIT A 
 

NEGATIVE DECLARATION 
 

- SEE ATTACHED - 

 
A-1 

012178.00092 Business 24336926v1 



 
A-2 

012178.00092 Business 24336926v1 



 

 
A-3 

012178.00092 Business 24336926v1 



COMMERCIAL FINDINGS RESOLUTION 
GOLF COURSE APARTMENTS, LLC PROJECT 

 
A regular meeting of Montgomery County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) was 

convened in public session at the offices of the Agency located at the 113 Park Drive, Fultonville, New 
York on September 21, 2023 at 4:30 o’clock p.m., local time. 
 

The meeting was called to order by the (Vice) Chairperson of the Agency and, upon roll being 
called, the following members of the Agency were: 
 
PRESENT: 
 

Matthew Beck Chairperson 
Carol Shineman Vice Chairperson 
Cheryl Reese Treasurer 
Laurie Weingart Secretary 
Amanda Auricchio, Esq. Member 
Mark Kowalczyk Member 
Brent E. Phetteplace Member 

 
ABSENT: 
 

    
    

 
AGENCY STAFF PRESENT INCLUDED THE FOLLOWING: 
 

Kenneth F. Rose Chief Executive Officer 
Sheila Snell Chief Financial Officer 
Andrew Santillo Staff Assistant 
Vincenzo Nicosia 
Stephanie Battisti 

Director of Program Development 
Ec. Development Specialist 

A. Joseph Scott, III, Esq. Agency Counsel 
 

The following resolution was offered by ____________________, seconded by 
____________________, to wit: 

 
Resolution No. 23-15 

 
RESOLUTION (A) DETERMINING THAT THE PROPOSED GOLF COURSE 
APARTMENTS, LLC PROJECT IS A COMMERCIAL PROJECT, AND (B) MAKING 
CERTAIN FINDINGS REQUIRED UNDER THE GENERAL MUNICIPAL LAW. 
 
WHEREAS, Montgomery County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is authorized 

and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York, constituting Title 1 of 
Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended 
(the “Enabling Act”) and Chapter 666 of the 1970 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 
895-d of said General Municipal Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively 
referred to as the “Act”) to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, 
reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of commercial, manufacturing and 
industrial facilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing economically 

012178.00092 Business 24344752v2 



sound commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic 
welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and standard of living, and to 
prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and 
 

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and empowered under the 
Act to acquire, construct and install one or more “projects” (as defined in the Act) or to cause said projects 
to be acquired, constructed and installed, and to convey said projects or to lease said projects with the 
obligation to purchase; and 

 
WHEREAS, in June, 2023, Golf Course Apartments, LLC, a New York State limited liability 

company (the “Company”), submitted an application (the “Application”) to the Agency, a copy of which 
Application is on file at the office of the Agency, which Application requested that the Agency consider 
undertaking a project (the “Project”) for the benefit of the Company, said Project consisting of the 
following: (A) (1) the acquisition of an interest in an approximately 8.10 acre parcel of land located at 383 
Golf Course Road (Tax Map No. 24.-6-24.11) in the Town of Amsterdam, Montgomery County, New York 
(the “Land”), (2) the construction on the Land of approximately five (5) 12,000 square foot buildings 
(collectively, the “Facility”), and (3) the acquisition and installation of certain machinery and equipment 
therein and thereon (the “Equipment”) (the Land, the Facility and the Equipment hereinafter referred to as 
the “Project Facility”), all of the foregoing to be owned by the Company and leased to and operated by Dan 
Vann Property Management, LLC (the “Sublessee”), as an apartment complex for adults 55 years or older 
and other directly or indirectly related activities; (B) the granting of certain “financial assistance” (within 
the meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect to the foregoing, including potential exemptions 
from certain sales and use taxes, real property taxes, real property transfer taxes and mortgage recording 
taxes (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”); and (C) the lease (with an obligation to purchase) or sale 
of the Project Facility to the Company or such other person as may be designated by the Company and 
agreed upon by the Agency; and 
 

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on July 13, 2023 (the “Public 
Hearing Resolution”), the Agency authorized a public hearing to be held pursuant to Section 859-a of the 
Act with respect to the Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the authorization contained in the Public Hearing Resolution, the Chief 

Executive Officer of the Agency (A) caused notice of a public hearing of the Agency (the “Public Hearing”) 
pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act, to hear all persons interested in the Project and the financial assistance 
being contemplated by the Agency with respect to the Project, to be mailed on August 10, 2023 to the chief 
executive officers of the county and of each city, town, village and school district in which the Project is or 
is to be located; (B) caused notice of the Public Hearing to be posted on August 10, 2023 on a public bulletin 
board located at 113 Park Drive in the Village of Fultonville and Town of Glen, Montgomery County, New 
York, as well as on the Agency’s website; (C) caused notice of the Public Hearing to be published on 
August 12, 2023 in The Recorder, a newspaper of general circulation available to the residents of Town of 
Amsterdam, Montgomery County, New York; (D) conducted the Public Hearing on August 24, 2023 at 
11:00 a.m., local time at the Town of Amsterdam Municipal Building located at 283 Manny’s Corners Road 
in the Town of Amsterdam, Montgomery County, New York; (E) prepared a report of the Public Hearing 
(the “Public Hearing Report”) which fairly summarized the views presented at such Public Hearing and 
caused copies of said Public Hearing Report to be made available to the members of the Agency and (F) 
caused a copy of the certified Public Hearing Resolution to be sent via certified mail return receipt requested 
on August 16, 2023 to the chief executive officers of the County and of each city, town, village and school 
district in which the Project Facility is to be located to comply with the requirements of Section 859-a of 
the Act; and 

 

 
- 2 - 

012178.00092 Business 24344752v2 



WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 43-B of the 
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “SEQR Act”) and the regulations (the “Regulations”) 
adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation of the State of New York 
(collectively with the SEQR Act, “SEQRA”), by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on 
September 21, 2023 (the “SEQR Resolution”) the Agency (A) concurred in the determination that the Town 
of Amsterdam Planning Board (the “Planning Board”) is the “lead agency” with respect to the Project and 
(B) acknowledged the receipt of the Planning Board’s Determination of Non Significance issued on 
November 2, 2022 (the “2022 Negative Declaration”), which 2022 Negative Declaration was supplemented 
by the Planning Board’s negative declaration issued on July 5, 2023 (the “Negative Declaration”), 
determining that the acquisition, construction and installation of the Project Facility will not have a 
“significant effect on the environment” and therefore, that an environmental impact statement need not be 
prepared with respect to the Project (as such quoted terms are defined in SEQRA); and 

 
WHEREAS, in Opinion of the State Comptroller Number 85-51, the State Comptroller indicated 

that the determination whether a project that consists of the construction of an apartment house is a 
commercial activity within the meaning of the Act is to be made by local officials based upon all of the 
facts relevant to the proposed project, and that any such determination should take into account the stated 
purpose of the Act, that is, the promotion of employment opportunities and the prevention of economic 
deterioration; and 

 
WHEREAS, to aid the Agency in determining whether the Project qualifies for Financial 

Assistance as a commercial project within the meaning of the Act, the Agency has reviewed the following 
(collectively, the “Project Qualification Documents”): (A) the Application, including the attached Cost 
Benefit Analysis; and (B) a letter dated September 19, 2023 from the Town Supervisor of the Town of 
Amsterdam, Montgomery County, New York (the “Town”) relating to the Project attached hereto as Exhibit 
A; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the Project Qualification Documents; and  
 
WHEREAS, having complied with the requirements of SEQRA and Section 859-a of the Act with 

respect to the Project, the Agency now desires to make its final findings with respect to the Project and its 
final determination whether to proceed with the Project;  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Based upon an examination of the Project Qualification Documents and based 
further upon the Agency's knowledge of the area surrounding the Project and such further investigation of 
the Project and its economic effects as the Agency has deemed appropriate, the Agency makes the following 
findings and determinations with respect to the Project: 

 
A. The Project is located in an area having a mixture of residential, not-for-profit, 

commercial, retail, and service uses. 
 
B. The Project Qualification Documents makes the following comments/findings 

regarding housing in the Town: 
 
• There is a growing need for apartments for the retirement or near 

retirement aged residents of the Town.  
 

 
- 3 - 

012178.00092 Business 24344752v2 



C. Undertaking the Project is consistent with the Project Qualification Documents and 
will assist in maintaining current and future residential and commercial development and expansion 
in the Town. 

 
D. The Company has informed representatives of the Agency that the Project will 

result in the retention and creation of employment in the retail, restaurant, entertainment and office 
operations located in the surrounding areas. 

 
E. The Company has informed the Agency that the Project is expected to create two 

(2) permanent full-time jobs. 
 
F. The Company has informed representatives of the Agency that the Company is not 

aware of any adverse employment impact caused by the undertaking of the Project. 
 

Section 2. Based upon the foregoing review of the Project Qualification Documents and 
based further upon the Issuer’s knowledge of the area surrounding the Project Facility and such further 
investigation of the Project and its economic effects as the Issuer has deemed appropriate, the Issuer makes 
the following determinations with respect to the Project: 

 
A. That (i) the Project Facility will provide necessary infrastructure for area 

employers and businesses, (ii) the completion of the Project Facility will have an impact upon the 
creation, retention and expansion of employment opportunities in the County and in the State of 
New York (the “State”), and (iii) the completion of the Project will assist in promoting employment 
opportunities and assist in preventing economic deterioration in the County and in the State of New 
York. 

 
B. That the acquisition, reconstruction, renovation and installation of the Project 

Facility is essential to the retention of existing employment and the creation of new employment 
opportunities and is essential to the prevention of economic deterioration of businesses and 
neighborhoods located in the County. 

 
C. That the Project constitutes a “commercial” project, within the meaning of the Act. 
 
D. That the undertaking of the Project will serve the public purposes of the Act by 

creating permanent private sector jobs in the State of New York. 
 

Section 3. Having reviewed the Public Hearing Report, and having considered fully all 
comments contained therein, and based upon the findings contained in Section 1 above, the Agency hereby 
determines to proceed with the Project and the granting of the financial assistance described in the notice 
of the Public Hearing. 

 
Section 4. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 

 
- 4 - 

012178.00092 Business 24344752v2 



The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, which 
resulted as follows: 
 

Matthew Beck VOTING __________ 
Carol Shineman VOTING __________ 
Cheryl Reese VOTING __________ 
Laurie Weingart VOTING __________ 
Amanda Auricchio, Esq. VOTING __________ 
Mark Kowalczyk VOTING __________ 
Brent E. Phetteplace VOTING __________ 

 
The foregoing resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 
 

[Remainder of page left blank intentionally] 
 

  

 
- 5 - 

012178.00092 Business 24344752v2 



 
STATE OF NEW YORK  ) 
     ) SS.: 
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY ) 
 
 

I, the undersigned (Assistant) Secretary of Montgomery County Industrial Development Agency 
(the “Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I have compared the foregoing annexed extract of the 
minutes of the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the resolution contained therein, held on 
September 21, 2023 with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and correct 
copy of said original and of such resolution contained therein and of the whole of said original so far as the 
same relates to the subject matters therein referred to. 
 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said meeting; (B) 
said meeting was in all respects duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the Public Officers Law (the “Open 
Meetings Law”), said meeting was open to the general public, and due notice of the time and place of said 
meeting was duly given in accordance with such Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the 
members of the Agency present throughout said meeting. 
 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force and effect 
and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Agency this 
_____ day of September, 2023. 
 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
(Assistant) Secretary 

 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 

 
- 6 - 

012178.00092 Business 24344752v2 



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

SUPPORT LETTER FROM TOWN SUPERVISOR 
 

See attached.  
  

 
A-1 

012178.00092 Business 24344752v2 



 

 

 
A-2 

012178.00092 Business 24344752v2 



APPROVING RESOLUTION 
GOLF COURSE APARTMENTS, LLC PROJECT 

 
A regular meeting of Montgomery County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) was 

convened in public session at the offices of the Agency located at the 113 Park Drive, Fultonville, New 
York on September 21, 2023 at 3:00 o’clock p.m., local time. 
 

The meeting was called to order by the (Vice) Chairperson of the Agency and, upon roll being 
called, the following members of the Agency were: 
 
PRESENT: 
 

Matthew Beck Chairperson 
Carol Shineman Vice Chairperson 
Cheryl Reese Treasurer 
Laurie Weingart Secretary 
Amanda Auricchio, Esq. Member 
Mark Kowalczyk Member 
Brent E. Phetteplace Member 

 
ABSENT: 
 

    
    

 
AGENCY STAFF PRESENT INCLUDED THE FOLLOWING: 
 

Kenneth F. Rose Chief Executive Officer 
Sheila Snell Chief Financial Officer 
Andrew Santillo Staff Assistant 
Vincenzo Nicosia 
Stephanie Battisti 

Director of Program Development 
Ec. Development Specialist 

A. Joseph Scott, III, Esq. Agency Counsel 
 

The following resolution was offered by ____________________, seconded by 
____________________, to wit: 

 
Resolution No. 23-16 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF DOCUMENTS IN CONNECTION 
WITH A LEASE/LEASEBACK TRANSACTION FOR A PROJECT FOR GOLF 
COURSE APARTMENTS, LLC (THE “COMPANY”). 

 
WHEREAS, Montgomery County Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”) is authorized 

and empowered by the provisions of Chapter 1030 of the 1969 Laws of New York, constituting Title 1 of 
Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law, Chapter 24 of the Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended 
(the “Enabling Act”) and Chapter 666 of the 1970 Laws of New York, as amended, constituting Section 
895-d of said General Municipal Law (said Chapter and the Enabling Act being hereinafter collectively 
referred to as the “Act”) to promote, develop, encourage and assist in the acquiring, constructing, 
reconstructing, improving, maintaining, equipping and furnishing of manufacturing, warehousing, research, 
commercial and industrial facilities, among others, for the purpose of promoting, attracting and developing 

012178.00092 Business 24337158v1 



economically sound commerce and industry to advance the job opportunities, health, general prosperity and 
economic welfare of the people of the State of New York, to improve their prosperity and standard of living, 
and to prevent unemployment and economic deterioration; and 
 

WHEREAS, to accomplish its stated purposes, the Agency is authorized and empowered under the 
Act to acquire, construct, reconstruct and install one or more “projects” (as defined in the Act) or to cause 
said projects to be acquired, constructed, reconstructed and installed, and to convey said projects or to lease 
said projects with the obligation to purchase; and 

 
WHEREAS, Golf Course Apartments, LLC, a New York State limited liability company (the 

“Company”), submitted an application (the “Application”) to the Agency, a copy of which Application is 
on file at the office of the Agency, which Application requested that the Agency consider undertaking a 
project (the “Project”) for the benefit of the Company, said Project consisting of the following: (A) (1) the 
acquisition of an interest in an approximately 8.10 acre parcel of land located at 383 Golf Course Road 
(Tax Map No. 24.-6-24.11) in the Town of Amsterdam, Montgomery County, New York (the “Land”), (2) 
the construction on the Land of approximately five (5) 12,000 square foot buildings (collectively, the 
“Facility”), and (3) the acquisition and installation of certain machinery and equipment therein and thereon 
(the “Equipment”) (the Land, the Facility and the Equipment hereinafter referred to as the “Project 
Facility”), all of the foregoing to be owned by the Company and leased to and operated by Dan Vann 
Property Management, LLC (the “Sublessee”), as an apartment complex for adults 55 years or older and 
other directly or indirectly related activities; (B) the granting of certain “financial assistance” (within the 
meaning of Section 854(14) of the Act) with respect to the foregoing, including potential exemptions from 
certain sales and use taxes, real property taxes, real estate transfer taxes and mortgage recording taxes 
(collectively, the “Financial Assistance”); and (C) the lease (with an obligation to purchase) or sale of the 
Project Facility to the Company or such other person as may be designated by the Company and agreed 
upon by the Agency; and 
 

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on July 13, 2023 (the “Public 
Hearing Resolution”), the Agency authorized a public hearing to be held pursuant to Section 859-a of the 
Act with respect to the Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the authorization contained in the Public Hearing Resolution, the Chief 

Executive Officer of the Agency (A) caused notice of a public hearing of the Agency (the “Public Hearing”) 
pursuant to Section 859-a of the Act, to hear all persons interested in the Project and the financial assistance 
being contemplated by the Agency with respect to the Project, to be mailed on August 10, 2023 to the chief 
executive officers of the county and of each city, town, village and school district in which the Project is or 
is to be located; (B) caused notice of the Public Hearing to be posted on August 10, 2023 on a public bulletin 
board located at 113 Park Drive in the Village of Fultonville and Town of Glen, Montgomery County, New 
York, as well as on the Agency’s website; (C) caused notice of the Public Hearing to be published on 
August 12, 2023 in The Recorder, a newspaper of general circulation available to the residents of Town of 
Amsterdam, Montgomery County, New York; (D) conducted the Public Hearing on August 24, 2023 at 
11:00 a.m., local time at the Town of Amsterdam Municipal Building located at 283 Manny’s Corners Road 
in the Town of Amsterdam, Montgomery County, New York; (E) prepared a report of the Public Hearing 
(the “Public Hearing Report”) which fairly summarized the views presented at such Public Hearing and 
caused copies of said Public Hearing Report to be made available to the members of the Agency and (F) 
caused a copy of the certified Public Hearing Resolution to be sent via certified mail return receipt requested 
on August 16, 2023 to the chief executive officers of the County and of each city, town, village and school 
district in which the Project Facility is to be located to comply with the requirements of Section 859-a of 
the Act; and 

 

 
- 2 - 

012178.00092 Business 24337158v1 



WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law, Chapter 43-B of the 
Consolidated Laws of New York, as amended (the “SEQR Act”) and the regulations (the “Regulations”) 
adopted pursuant thereto by the Department of Environmental Conservation of the State of New York 
(collectively with the SEQR Act, “SEQRA”), by resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on 
September 21, 2023 (the “SEQR Resolution”) the Agency (A) concurred in the determination that the Town 
of Amsterdam Planning Board (the “Planning Board”) is the “lead agency” with respect to the Project and 
(B) acknowledged the receipt of the Planning Board’s Determination of Non Significance issued on 
November 2, 2022 (the “2022 Negative Declaration”), which 2022 Negative Declaration was supplemented 
by the Planning Board’s negative declaration issued on July 5, 2023 (the “Negative Declaration”), 
determining that the acquisition, construction and installation of the Project Facility will not have a 
“significant effect on the environment” and therefore, that an environmental impact statement need not be 
prepared with respect to the Project (as such quoted terms are defined in SEQRA); and 

 
WHEREAS, by further resolution adopted by the members of the Agency on September 21, 2023 

(the “Commercial Findings Resolution”), the Agency (A) determined that the Project constituted a 
“commercial project” within the meaning of the Act, (B) determined, following a review of the Public 
Hearing Report, that the Project would serve the public purposes of the Act by creating and preserving 
permanent private sector jobs in the State of New York and (C) determined that the Agency would proceed 
with the Project and the granting of the Financial Assistance; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Agency has given due consideration to the Application, and to representations by 
the Company that (A) the granting by the Agency of the Financial Assistance with respect to the Project 
will be an inducement to the Company to undertake the Project in Montgomery County, New York and (B) 
the completion of the Project will not result in the removal of a plant or facility of any proposed occupant 
of the Project Facility from one area of the State of New York to another area in the State of New York and 
will not result in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of any occupant of the Project Facility 
located in the State of New York; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to encourage the Company to preserve and advance the job 
opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of Montgomery County, New 
York by undertaking the Project in Montgomery County, New York; and 
 

WHEREAS, in order to consummate the Project and the granting of the Financial Assistance 
described in the notice of the Public Hearing, the Agency proposes to enter into the following documents 
(hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Agency Documents”): (A) a certain lease to agency (the “Lease 
to Agency” or the “Underlying Lease”) by and between the Company, as landlord, and the Agency, as 
tenant, pursuant to which the Company will lease to the Agency a portion of the Land and all improvements 
now or hereafter located on said portion of the Land (collectively, the “Leased Premises”); (B) a certain 
license agreement (the “License to Agency” or the “License Agreement”) by and between the Company, 
as licensor, and the Agency, as licensee, pursuant to which the Company will grant to the Agency (1) a 
license to enter upon the balance of the Land (the “Licensed Premises”) for the purpose of undertaking and 
completing the Project and (2) in the event of an occurrence of an Event of Default by the Company, an 
additional license to enter upon the Licensed Premises for the purpose of pursuing its remedies under the 
Lease Agreement (as hereinafter defined); (C) a lease agreement (and a memorandum thereof) (the “Lease 
Agreement”) by and between the Agency and the Company, pursuant to which, among other things, the 
Company agrees to undertake the Project as agent of the Agency and the Company further agrees to lease 
the Project Facility from the Agency and, as rental thereunder, to pay the Agency’s administrative fee 
relating to the Project and to pay all expenses incurred by the Agency with respect to the Project; (D) a 
payment in lieu of tax agreement (the “Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement”) by and between the Agency 
and the Company, pursuant to which the Company will agree to pay certain payments in lieu of taxes with 
respect to the Project Facility; (E) a uniform agency project agreement (the “Uniform Agency Project 

 
- 3 - 

012178.00092 Business 24337158v1 



Agreement”) by and between the Agency and the Company regarding the granting of the financial 
assistance and the potential recapture of such assistance; (F) a certain recapture agreement (the “Section 
875 GML Recapture Agreement”) by and between the Company and the Agency, required by the Act, 
regarding the recovery or recapture of certain sales and use taxes; (G) a sales tax exemption letter (the 
“Sales Tax Exemption Letter”) to ensure the granting of the sales tax exemption which forms a part of the 
Financial Assistance; (H) a New York State Department of Taxation and Finance form entitled “IDA 
Appointment of Project Operator or Agency for Sales Tax Purposes” (the form required to be filed pursuant 
to Section 874(9) of the Act) (the “Thirty-Day Sales Tax Report”) and any additional report to the 
Commissioner of the State Department of Taxation and Finance concerning the amount of sales tax 
exemption benefit for the Project (the “Additional Thirty-Day Project Report”); (I) if the Company intends 
to finance the Project with borrowed money, a mortgage and any other security documents and related 
documents (collectively, the “Mortgage”) from the Agency and the Company to the Company’s lender with 
respect to the Project (“the “Lender”), which Mortgage will grant a lien on and security interest in the 
Project Facility to secure a loan from the Lender to the Company with respect to the Project (the “Loan”); 
(J) if the Company requests the Agency to appoint a contractor or contractors, as agent(s) of the Agency 
(each, a “Contractor”) (1) a certain agency indemnification agreement (the “Contractor Agency and 
Indemnification Agreement”) by and between the Agency and the Contractor, (2) a certain recapture 
agreement (the “Contractor Section 875 GML Recapture Agreement”) by and between the Agency and the 
Contractor, (3) a sales tax exemption letter (the “Contractor Sales Tax Exemption Letter”), and (4) a Thirty-
Day Sales Tax Report (the “Contractor Thirty-Day Sales Tax Report”) and any additional report to the 
Commissioner of the State Department of Taxation and Finance concerning the amount of sales tax 
exemption benefit for the Project (the “Additional Thirty-Day Project Report”) (collectively, the 
“Contractor Documents”); (K) if the Company intends to request the Agency to appoint (1) the Company, 
as agent of the Agency and (2) a Contractor, as agent(s) of the Agency prior to closing on the Project and 
the Lease Agreement or Installment Sale Agreement, interim, agency and indemnification agreements, 
interim Section 875 GML recapture agreements, interim sales tax exemption letters and interim thirty-day 
sales tax reports (collectively, the “Interim Documents”); and (L) various certificates relating to the Project 
(the “Closing Documents”); 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF MONTGOMERY COUNTY 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. All action taken by the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson and/or Chief Executive 
Officer of the Agency with respect to the Public Hearing with respect to the Project is hereby ratified and 
confirmed. 
 

Section 2. The law firm of Hodgson Russ LLP is hereby appointed Agency Counsel to the 
Agency with respect to all matters in connection with the Project. Agency Counsel for the Agency is hereby 
authorized, at the expense of the Company, to work with the Company, counsel to the Company, counsel 
to the Agency and others to prepare, for submission to the Agency, all documents necessary to effect the 
transactions contemplated by this resolution. Agency Counsel has prepared and submitted an initial draft 
of the Agency Documents to staff of the Agency. 
 

Section 3. The Agency hereby finds and determines that:  
 

(A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and 
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all 
powers granted to it under the Act;  

 
(B) The Project constitutes a “project,” as such term is defined in the Act;  

 

 
- 4 - 

012178.00092 Business 24337158v1 



(C) The Project site is located entirely within the boundaries of Montgomery County, 
New York; 

 
(D) It is estimated at the present time that the costs of the planning, development, 

acquisition, construction, reconstruction and installation of the Project Facility (collectively, the 
“Project Costs”) will be approximately $3,750,000.00; 

 
(E) The completion of the Project will not result in the removal of a plant or facility of 

any proposed occupant of the Project Facility from one area of the State of New York to another 
area in the State of New York and will not result in the abandonment of one or more plants or 
facilities of any occupant of the Project Facility located in the State of New York;  

 
(F) (1) The Project Facility does not constitute a project where facilities or property 

that are primarily used in making retail sales of goods and/or services to customers who personally 
visit such facilities constitute more than one-third of the total cost of the Project Facility, and 
accordingly the Project is not prohibited by the provisions of Section 862(2)(a) of the Act, and (2) 
accordingly the Agency is authorized to provide financial assistance in respect of the Project 
pursuant to Section 862(2)(a) of the Act; 

 
(G) The granting of the Financial Assistance by the Agency with respect to the Project 

will promote and maintain the job opportunities, general prosperity and economic welfare of the 
citizens of Montgomery County, New York and the State of New York and improve their standard 
of living, and thereby serve the public purposes of the Act; 

 
(H) The Agency has reviewed the Public Hearing Report and has fully considered all 

comments contained therein; 
 
(I) The Project should receive the Financial Assistance in the form of exemptions 

from sales tax, mortgage recording tax and real property tax based on the description of expected 
public benefits to occur as a result of this Project, as described on Exhibit A attached hereto; and 

 
(J) It is desirable and in the public interest for the Agency to enter into the Agency 

Documents, except that for the Interim Documents, the following conditions shall be met prior to 
the Agency entering into the Interim Documents: (1) the term of the Interim Documents shall not 
exceed sixty (60) days, unless future extensions are consented to by the Agency in writing, (2) the 
Company shall have paid the Agency’s administrative fee, if applicable, relating to the Interim 
Documents, (3) the Company and any contractors shall have delivered evidence of adequate 
insurance coverage protecting the Agency and (4) execution by the other parties thereto and 
delivery of the same to the Agency of the Interim Documents. 

 
Section 4. In consequence of the foregoing, the Agency hereby determines to:  (A) accept the 

License Agreement; (B) lease the Project Facility to the Company pursuant to the Lease Agreement; (C) 
acquire, construct and install the Project Facility, or cause the Project Facility to be acquired, installed and 
constructed; (D) enter into the Payment in Lieu of Tax Agreement; (E) enter into the Uniform Agency 
Project Agreement; (F) enter into the Section 875 GML Recapture Agreement; (G) enter into the Contractor 
Documents (H) enter into the Interim Documents, subject to compliance with Section 3(J) above; (I) secure 
the Loan by entering into the Mortgage; and (J) grant the Financial Assistance with respect to the Project. 
 

 
- 5 - 

012178.00092 Business 24337158v1 



Section 5. The Agency is hereby authorized (A) to acquire a license in the Licensed Premises 
pursuant to the License Agreement, (B) to acquire a leasehold interest in the Leased Premises pursuant to 
the Underlying Lease, (C) to acquire title to the Equipment pursuant to a bill of sale (the “Bill of Sale to 
Agency”) from the Company to the Agency, and (D) to do all things necessary or appropriate for the 
accomplishment thereof, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency with respect to such acquisitions are 
hereby approved, ratified and confirmed. 
 

Section 6. The Agency is hereby authorized to acquire, construct and install the Project 
Facility as described in the Lease Agreement and to do all things necessary or appropriate for the 
accomplishment thereof, and all acts heretofore taken by the Agency with respect to such acquisition, 
construction and installation are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved. 
 

Section 7. The Chairperson (or Vice Chairperson) and/or Chief Executive Officer of the 
Agency, with the assistance of Agency Counsel, is authorized to negotiate and approve the form and 
substance of the Agency Documents. 
 

Section 8. (A) The Chairperson (or Vice Chairperson) and/or Chief Executive Officer of the 
Agency is hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver the Agency Documents, and, 
where appropriate, the Secretary of the Agency is hereby authorized to affix the seal of the Agency thereto 
and to attest the same, all in the forms thereof as the Chairperson (or Vice Chairperson) and/or Chief 
Executive Officer shall approve, the execution thereof by the Chairperson (or Vice Chairperson), and/or 
Chief Executive Officer to constitute conclusive evidence of such approval. 
 

(B) The Chairperson (or Vice Chairperson), and/or Chief Executive Officer of the 
Agency is hereby further authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to designate any additional 
Authorized Representatives of the Agency (as defined in and pursuant to the Lease Agreement). 

 
Section 9. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized and 

directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required or provided for 
by the provisions of the Agency Documents, and to execute and deliver all such additional certificates, 
instruments and documents, to pay all such fees, charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and 
things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper 
to effect the purposes of the foregoing resolution and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the 
terms, covenants and provisions of the Agency Documents binding upon the Agency. 
 

Section 10. This resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, which 
resulted as follows: 
 

Matthew Beck VOTING __________ 
Carol Shineman VOTING __________ 
Amanda Auricchio, Esq. VOTING __________ 
Mark Kowalczyk VOTING __________ 
Brent E. Phetteplace VOTING __________ 
Cheryl Reese VOTING __________ 
Laurie Weingart VOTING __________ 

 
The foregoing resolution was thereupon declared duly adopted. 
  

 
- 6 - 

012178.00092 Business 24337158v1 



STATE OF NEW YORK  ) 
     ) SS.: 
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY ) 
 
 

I, the undersigned Secretary of Montgomery County Industrial Development Agency (the 
“Agency”), DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I have compared the foregoing annexed extract of the minutes of 
the meeting of the members of the Agency, including the resolution contained therein, held on September 
21, 2023 with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and correct copy of said 
original and of such resolution contained therein and of the whole of said original so far as the same relates 
to the subject matters therein referred to. 
 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that (A) all members of the Agency had due notice of said meeting; (B) 
said meeting was in all respects duly held; (C) pursuant to Article 7 of the Public Officers Law (the “Open 
Meetings Law”), said meeting was open to the general public, and due notice of the time and place of said 
meeting was duly given in accordance with such Open Meetings Law; and (D) there was a quorum of the 
members of the Agency present throughout said meeting. 
 

I FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force and effect 
and has not been amended, repealed or rescinded. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Agency this 
_____ day of September, 2023. 
 
 
 

_____________________________________ 
Secretary 

 
 
 
(SEAL)

 
- 7 - 

012178.00092 Business 24337158v1 



 

EXHIBIT A 
 

DESCRIPTION OF THE EXPECTED PUBLIC BENEFITS 
 

In the discussions had between the Project Beneficiary and the Agency with respect to the Project 
Beneficiary’s request for Financial Assistance from the Agency with respect to the Project, the Project 
Beneficiary has represented to the Agency that the Project is expected to provide the following benefits to 
the Agency and/or to the residents of Montgomery County, New York (the “Public Benefits”): 

 
Description of Benefit Applicable to Project 

(indicate Yes or NO) 
Expected Benefit 

1. Retention of existing jobs Yes  No There are no existing jobs at the 
site. 

2. Creation of new permanent 
jobs 

 Yes  No 2 FTE’s at the Project Facility. 

3. Estimated value of tax 
exemptions 

 Yes  No Approximately $240,000.00 of 
sales and use tax exemptions. 
Approximately $30,000.00 of 
mortgage recording tax 
exemptions. 
Approximately $348,427.90 of 
real property tax exemptions.    

4. Private sector investment  Yes  No Approximately $3,750,000.00 at 
the Project Facility within three 
(3) years of the date hereof. 

5. Likelihood of project being 
accomplished in a timely 
fashion 

 Yes  No High likelihood of the Project 
being completed in a timely 
manner. 

6. Extent of new revenue 
provided to local taxing 
jurisdictions 

 Yes  No The Project will result in 
increased revenues to the local 
taxing jurisdictions. 

7. Any additional public 
benefits 

 Yes  No The Project will provide capital 
improvements to a parcel that has 
been underutilized for several 
years. 
 

8. Local labor construction 
jobs 

 Yes  No The Company will make efforts to 
use local labor during 
construction. 

9. Regional wealth creation (% 
of sales/customers outside 
of the County 

 Yes 
 

 No 
 

N/A 

10. Located in a highly 
distressed census tract  

 Yes 
 

 No 
 

N/A 

11. Alignment with local 
planning and development 
efforts 

 Yes 
 

 No 
 

The Project is consistent with 
local planning and development 
efforts. 
 

12. Promotes walkable 
community areas 

 Yes  No The Project site is not located in 
an urban setting with sidewalks. 

 
A-1 

012178.00092 Business 24337158v1 



 

 
13. Elimination or reduction of 

blight 
 Yes  No  The Project site is not located in 

a blighted area. 
 

14. Proximity/support of 
regional tourism 
attractions/facilities 

 Yes 
 

 No 
 

N/A 

15. Local or County official 
support 

 Yes 
 

 No 
 

The Project has local and County 
support. 
 

16. Building or site has historic 
designation 

 Yes  No There is no historic designation. 

17. Provides brownfield 
remediation 

 Yes  No No brownfields present. 

 

 
A-2 

012178.00092 Business 24337158v1 


	RE: MCIDA and MCCRC Governance and Regular Meetings
	REPORT OF PUBLIC HEARING.PDF
	101897_Public Hearing 8-24-23-1wi.pdf
	101897_Notice.pdf
	101897_Public Hearing 8-24-23-1wi


